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SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. 86 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

INTRODUCED APRIL 24, 1978 

By Senator DWYER 

Referred to Committee on Revenue, Finance and Appropriations 

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION proposing to amend Article IV, Section 

VII, paragraph 2 of the Constitution of the State of New Jersey. 

1 BE IT RESOLVED by the Senate of the State of New Jersey (the 

2 General Assembly concurring): 

1 1. The following proposed amendment to the Constitution of the 

2 State of New Jersey is hereby agreed to: 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

3 Amend Article IV, Section VII, paragraph 2, of the Constitution 

4 to read as follows : 

5 2. No gambling of any kind shall be authorized by the Legislature 

6 unless the specific kind, restrictions and control thereof have been 

7 heretofore submitted to, and authorized by a majority of the votes 

8 cast by, the people at a special election or shall hereafter be sub-

9 mitted to, and authorized by a majority of the votes cast thereon by, 

10 the legally qualified voters of the State voting at a general election, 

11 except that, without any such submission or authorization; 

12 A. It shall be lawful for bona fide veterans, charitable, educa-

13 tional, religious or fraternal organizations, civic and service clubs, 

14 senior citizen associations or clubs, volunteer fire companies and 

15 first-aid or rescue squads to conduct, under such restrictions and 

16 control as shall from time to time be prescribed by the Legislature 

17 by law, games of chance of, and restricted to, the selling of rights 

18 to participate, the awarding of prizes, in the specific kind of game 

19 of chance sometimes known as bingo or lotto, played with cards 

20 bearing numbers or other designations, 5 or more in one line, the 

21 holder covering numbers as objects, similarly numbered, are drawn 

22 from a receptacle and the game being won by the person who first 

23 covers a previously designated arrangement of numbers on such a 

24 card, when the entire net proceeds of such games of chance are to 

25 be devoted to educational, charitable, patriotic, religious or public-

26 spirited uses, and in the case of senior citizen associations or clubs 
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27 to the support of such organization,;;, i11 m1y nnmi<'ipal it y, i11 which 

28 a majority of the qualified voters, voting th0.r0.011, at a gp11urnl or 

29 special election as the submission thereof shall .be µrescribe<l by U1P 

30 Legislature by law, shall autl1ori:w the eouduct of such games of 

31 chance therein. 

32 B. lt shall be lawful for the Legislature to auihori:w, hy law, 

33 bona fide veterans, charitable, educational, rPligiom, or fraternal 

34 organizations, civic and service clubs, volunteer lire companies 11.111I 

35 first-ai<l or rescue squads to co11<lnct games ot' chancn ot', an<l 

36 restricted to, the selling of righti; io participate, awl the awarding 

37 of prizes, in the specific kin<ls of games of chauce :·wmetimes Jrnowu 

38 as raffles, couducte<l by the drawing for prizes or by the allotr11t\lli 

39 of prizes by chance, when the euti re net proceeds of such gauws of 

40 chance are to be devoted to educational, charitable, patriotic, 

41 religious or public-spirited uses, in any municipality, in which such 

42 law shall be adopted by a majority of the quali1ied voter:,;, voti11µ; 

43 thereon, at a general or special election as the submission thereof 

44 shall be prescribed by law and for the Legislature, from ti11Hi to 

45 time, to restrict and control, by law, the conduct of such gn111es of 

46 chance and 

47 C. It shall be lawful for the Legislature to authorize the conduct 

48 of State lotteries restricted to the selling of rights to participate 

49 therein and the awarding of prizes by drawings when the entire net 

50 proceeds of any such lottery shall be for State institutions, State 

51 ai<l for education. 

52 n. It shall he lawful for tl1e LPgislature to uuthori:;m hy law thn 

53 estaLlishment an<l operation, under regulation un<l control hy tlw 

54 Staie, of gambling ltom,es or casinos within the boundnrios, /lH 

55 heretofore estahlishe<l, of tlw city of Atla11iic City, co11111.y of 

56 Atlantic, and to license and tax such operations aml equipment 

57 used in connection therewith. Any law authorizing the establish-

58 ment and operation of such gambling establishments shall provide 

59 for the State revenues derived therefrom to be applied solely for 

60 .the purpose of providing funding for reductions in property taxes, 

61 rentals, telephone, gas, electric, and municipal utilities charges of, 

62 and for pharmaceutical assistance and other programs benefiting, 

63 eligible senior citizens and disabled residents of the State, in 

64: accordance with such formulae as the Legislature shall by law 

65 provide. The type and number of such casinos or gambling houses 

fi6 and of the gambling games which may be conducted in any such 

67 establishment shall be determined by or pursuant to the terms of 

68 the law authorizing the establishment and operation thereof. 
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1 2. When this proposed amendment to the Constitution is finally 

2 agreed to, pursuant to Article IX, paragraph 1 of the Constitution, 

3 it shall be submitted to t.hc people at the next general electiou 

4 occurring morl' than 3 months after such final agreement and shall 

G be pubfo,hed at leaRt once iu at lem,t one newspu1 wr of cuch county 

n rlesig-nntetl by the President of tho SPnate and t.l1P 8p1ialwr of tho 

7 O<'nernl ARs11111hly nn<l Uw Sl'cretiuy of Rt.nt.,i, 1101. h •RH 1lu111 :i 

8 months prior to said general election. 

1 3. This proposed amendment to the Constitution shall be sub-

2 mitted to the people at said election in the following manner and 

3 form: 

4 There shall be printed on each official ballot to be used at such 

5 general election, the following : 

6 a. In every municipality in which voting machines are not used, 

7 a legend which shall immediately precede the question, as follows: 

8 If you favor the proposition printed below make a cross ( X ), 

!) µlus ( +) or check (\ I ) in the square opposite the word "Yes." 

10 Ir yon nt·1i opJH>H<'<I tlwrdo 111ak<! a cross ( X ), plus ( + ) or clwck 

11 (\I ) i11 t.hc- sq11111·1i opposit.l' 1.he wol'll "No.'' 

12 h. In nvory rnunicipulit.y t.lu• l'ollowing question: 

Yes. 

No. 

THE APPLICATION OF STATE GAMBLING 

REYJ-;NUES TO PHARMACEUTICAL ASSIST­

ANCE PROGRAMS AND OTHER PROGRAMS 

w HICH BENEFIT ELIGIBLE SENIOR 

CITIZENS AND DISABLED RESIDENTS 

Do you approve the amendment of 
Article IV, Section VII, paragraph 2 of 
the Constitution of the State of New 
.Jersey, agreed to by the Legislature, 
which adds pharmuceutic\ul ussiHtancn 
progrums Ull(l otlwr progru111s which 
benefit eligible s1mior citizens un<l dis­
abled residents to those programs to 
which the State revenues derived from 
the licensing uud taxation of ~ambling in 
Atlantic City are dedicated T 

STATEMENT 

The purpose of this Constitutional amendment is to provide 

that in addition to reducing property taxes, rentals, telephones, 

gas, electric, and municipal utilities charges of eligible senior 

citizens and disabled residents, State revenues derived from the 

licensing and taxation of gambling in Atlantic City shall be applied 

to funding pharmaceutical assistance· programs and other pro­

grams which benefit such persons. 



SENATOR BERNARD J. DWYER (Chairman): Good mor ning, ladies and gentlemen, 

my name is Senator Bernard Dwyer. I am thb Chairman o f t he Senate Revenue, Finance 

and Appropriations Committee and I hereby call this public hearing to order. 

I would like to welcome you here this morning. At this time, I would like to 

introduce the other member of the Committee who is present: Senator Foran, Republican 

14th District, always dependable and always here. I might add that some of the 

Senators are at the League of Municipalities meeting in Atlanti c City . Some of 

those people are on panels there. 

This public hearing is called pursuant to Arti cle 9, Section 1, Paragraph 

1 of the Constitution of the State of New Jersey. Its purpose is to discus s Senate 

Concurrent Resolut~on No. 86, 9f which I am the sponsor. It is customary at public 

hearings of this nature for the sponsor of the subject legislation to open the 

testimony. Since I am both the sponsor of the Resolution and the Committee Chairman in 

this instance, I will make my opening remarks from here and then we will go on 

with testimony from others. 

Before I begin, let me say that I will call witnesses in t h e order that 

they have requested to testify. If you would like to testify but have not yet 

submitted your name to us, please see Mr. Zuzzio of our staff and he will add you 

to the list. He is sitting at the first desk. 

SCR-86 proposes to amend Article 4, Section 7, Paragraph 2 of the Constitu­

tion. It is this paragraph which governs gambling in New Jersey. Subparagraph 

D was adopted by the voters in November of 1976. It empowered the Legislature 

to enact legislation which would result in the establishment, regulation, control, 

and taxation of casinos in Atlaptic City. It further provides that the revenue 

generated to the State can only be used for reductions in property taxes, rentals, 

telephone, gas, electric, and municipal utilities for eligible senior citizens 

and disabled residents of the State. It is the latter provisions which SCR-86 

addresses. 

The new language in the Constitution, if SCR-86 prevails on the ballot 

next November, would expand the use of casino funds t~ include pharmaceutical 

assistance and other programs benefiting eligible senior citizens and disabled 

residents. The basic interest - and I believe the area in which most of the 

testimony will center today - will be in applying the money to the pharmaceutical 

assistance for the aged program, or PAA as it is known. 

This program, enacted by the Legislature in 1977 and implemented at the 

beginning of this year, is costing nearly $3 million a month and that number is 

constantly increasing as the number of participants and the costs of prescription 

drugs rise. 

Other committees of the Legislature are investigating various means of con­

trolling PAA costs and that is not the subject under discussion here. What is 

relevant here is whether the Constitution should be amended to expand the use 

of casino revenues to items other than property taxes and utilities. 

In addition to the PAA program, the money could then be applied to 

senior citizen and disabled transportation, housing, and whatever other programs 

might be developed. 

It is my feeling that the casino monies must continue to be used to 

benefit those who were promised the aid. But, it is also my belief that to unduly 

restrict the type of aid available to those beneficiaries is a policy which could 

work to the detriment of those it was intended to help. However, my feelings may 
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or may not be comperable to those who are affected by this matter. That is why 

we would like to hear from you today. 

Unless any member of the Committee has any remarks t hey would like to 

make, we will now hear from our first witness. 

Senator Foran. 

SENATOR FORAN: I would just like to get it on the record, Mr. Chairman, 

that the so-called take from casino gambling revenue - if I am correct - is 8% 

of the gross profit. Is that correct, Bill? 

MR. ZUZZIO: Yes. 

SENATOR FORAN: That, at 8%, runs somewhere around $40 or $50 thousand 

a week. At the present time, we have available in the fund, pending enabling 

legislation, monies which amount to somewhere in the neighborhood of $8 million , 

is that correct? 

MR. ZUZZIO: Yes. 

SENATOR FORAN: Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you, Senator Foran. The first witness on my list 

is Mr. George Cooper, New Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens. Mr. Cooper. 

GEORGE COOPER: Thank you, Senator Dwyer and gentlemen. I am represent­

ing the New Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens as a trust~e of the organization. 

I am also co-chairman of the Tax Task Force. 

We appreciate the opportunity of presenting our position. As background 

I would like to briefly outline our position under the present provision of the 

Constitution. Under the present Constitution, with its limited choice, we opposed 

using these funds for funding A-1830, the Lifeline Utilities Bill, which provides 

that such sums as are necessary to aid the establishment and maintenance of the 

lifeline rate for eligible users should be so funded. The Legislature did not go 

along with our point of view and passed this provision which we still oppose. The 

reason we do so is that our concept of lifeline is one of financing, basically, 

through rate restructure as a conservation measure so that low users can get the 

benefit of a lower rate and high users would have a somewhat higher rate. Still, 

the bill protects industry in many regards. But, our concept is in favor of rate 

restructure as a method of financing this kind of utility bill. 

Given the limited choices in the present Constitution, we supported the 

use of these funds for property tax relief and presented our position in front of 

the Joint Tax Policy Commission in .Woodbridge and also in Willingboro. Our reasons 

there for the choice were primarily that-- Oh, one very important reservation was 

made in this support and that is that some method be found to equitably bring 

tenants into a property tax relief program. We feel that is one of the largest 

problems with reference to the present relief setup. 

We suggested our own approach which was a circuit breaker type of 

approach which allows for say 25% of rent to be in lieu of property taxes for 

the purpose of the rebate and then scaling the rebate on a sliding scale with 

reference to the break off point -- the lower the income the higher the rebate, 

to a maximum -- on an either/or basis. It would not cancel the present homestead 

provision, but make it higher, up to a maximum. We feel that kind of relief would 

bring tenants into the picture, but there are other methods too. It would be very 

important if we were to support property tax relief, in the long run -if the 

Constitutuion is changed .- that this be done. 

The property tax relief concept hits seniors and disabled people on the 

broadest possible base, whereas the rent option and in some cases the utility option 
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is limited in its application. 

So, that basically was our position to date under the present constitutional 

provisions and under A-183O. 

This brings us down t o the present proposed constitutional amendment and 

we support it. We support it without reservation. We think that on i ts face things 

like t~e purpose for which money should be spent for senior s and d isabled people 

should be as broad as possible and take into account all possib l e ch oic es. Further, 

the present PAA crisis is a graphic illustration of the need for that fl exi b i lity 

and although we have not made a final determination of the formula by which we think 

funds should be distributed, we certainly thin~ it is a prime candidate f or ·any 

consideration under any funding program and we would theref ore support t he proposed 

amendment broadening this choice. 

We have also supported - and yesterday, or t~e day before yesterday, the 

Committee acted on this - the addition of a senior representative and a representa­

tive from the disabled community to the Legislative Commission that would set up 

the formula by which these funds would be distributed. I don't know how that will 

eventually turn out, but we supported that. 

So, the New Jersey Federation, which is a statewide org ani zati on with some 

495 clubs - I believe this was the latest count - has taken the positions we have 

outlined. We do support the proposed constitutional amendment. We are very 

sympathetic to considering PAA among the purposes for which these funds would be 

expended. We have not, however, made a final determination as to our present 

support of property tax relief, as opposed to possible broadening or splitting the 

funding, for PAA or other matters. I think at this point in time it isn't 

quite the time to do that. 

Foran? 

I think that summarizes the Federation's position at the present time. 

SJ.o:NATOR DWYER: Thank you, Mr. Hooper. Do you have any questions, Mr. 

(no questions) 

Thank you very kindly. Mr. Warren Cummings, Chairman of the National 

Retired Teachers' ,Associatio~/American Association of Retired Persons, Newton, New 

Jersey. Mr. Cummings. 

WARREN CUMMINGS: Thank Senator Dwyer and Senator Foran for giving us 

this opportunity to present our views this morning. 

I think I can skip the background material because it so closely parallels 

what the previous speaker said, with one exception: Our organiza t i on did not oppose 

the lifeline legislation. But, in eve:ry other regard, I think our experience was 

exactly the same as his. 

I suppose that I should m~ke clear that I am not giving an official position 

this morning of these two organizations, which my committee represents. It represents 

both of them. We have not adopted a position yet. I think we will do so on Friday. 

So, I am speaking as an individual. However, in my position as the Chairman of the 

Joint Committee, it is my duty to find out what retired people are thinking on public 

issues and here is what I found they have been thinking on the subject before us 

today. 

First, they know that they have been promised something from the revenues 

accruing from Atlantic City. Since May they have been reading and hearing fantastic 
I • 

stories of huge amounts of money amassing from gambling operations. Older citizens 

have been wondering when some announcement would be made as to what relief these 

sudden riches would bring to them. Now, I realize that the period of time is 

short and the government moves slowly, but when people are waiting for relief, time 
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stretches out. They have been growing impatient waiting for something to be done. 

Every week that passes without an announcement of a definite program has 

increased their impatience and their cynicism and the skeptics who have been saying 

all along, "It is all promises; we will never get any of the money" are now saying, 

"I told you so." 

Second, the pharmaceutical assistance program has been a tremendous hit -

an embarrassingly tremendous hit. Not only has it had a tremendous use, it is 

almost universally acceptable by even those who aren't eligible for the service. 

In line with the frightening increases in the cost of health care and 

the figures - I have just been reading some new figures in the past day or two -

are simply amazing. One of them that I read is almost unbelievable, but the source 

is pretty impeachable. It said hospital costs are rising at the rate of $1 million 

a day. This is hard to take. 

So, it is a matter of curious fact, and one which I am sure has not 

escaped the members of this Committee, that with the present fever for cutting budgets 

and reducing government spending of all kinds,health care has been noticeably missing 

on the list of suggestions for victims of the budgetary ax. I submit in passing 

that more help at all levels of government in meeting the fr~ghtening rise in 

health costs for the old and the disabled is an idea whose time has come, and · the 

pharmaceutical assistance program has been a tremendous help. It must be continued 

at all cost. 

Therefore, I am confident that New Jersey's retired will favor Concurrent 

Resolution No. 86 because it will reassure older citizens that the Legislature· 

has not forgotten the commitment of gambling revenues to them. It will give people 

like me something to tell the skeptics who say we will never get anything. It 

furnishes help for the highly desirable pharmaceutical program. It is flexible 

enough to take care of future emergencies not unforeseen in programs to relieve 

the elderly or disabled. It seems to me that the original, rigid specification
1 

of certain uses to which the fund could be put was wrong and that this nearly 

alleviates that problem. It is a definite effort to bring some relief to the 

old and disabled and I am happy to support the Concurrent Resolution wholeheartedly. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you, Mr. Cummings. Senator Foran. 

SENATOR FORAN: Warren, it is nice to see you again. I would like to make 

a comment on behalf of the Committee and myself, and the Legislature in general. 

I would like to reaffirm, for the benefit of the skeptics, the fact that one, the 

money is accumulating from Atlantic City. I mentioned when we first started that 

there is somewhere in the neighborhood of around $8 million at the present time. I 

can assure you that it is invested. I can assure you that it is not going to be 

used for budget crunches or any other program, other than the Constitution allows 

it be used for. The problem is, the amount is so small - even though $8 million 

sounds like an awful lot of money in order to give adequate tax relief for a group 

of our citizens - we are talking about maybe $2, $3, or $4 a piece. Although that 

would help, it is kind of not worth it at the present time. The fund needs to 
' be built up. : I think SCR-86, at the end of the year providing everything stays 

quid pro quo, should generate in the neighborhood of some $25 or $30 million. We 

can then really do a program for the senior citizens. 

But, - tell your skeptics that the money is there and it will be used for 

their benefit. 

MR. CUMMINGS: Thank you. I am very happy, Senator, to hear those words 
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and I am sure my people will be too. They need that r eassurance. Thank you very 

much. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you, Mr. Cummings. 

MR. HOOPER: May I correct something you said about our position? 

SENATOR DWYER: Go ahead. 

MR. HOOPER: You must have misunderstood me. When we opposed t he financing 

provisions of lifeline, we did not oppose lifeline. We we re one o f the prime 

sponsors of lifeline. 

MR. CUMMINGS: That was my original understanding. I d idn't get that. 

I am sorry to give that impression. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you very much, Mr. Cummi ngs . ~at point that was 

made is important -- that you support the Concurrent Resolution . The other important 

point was that, as Senator Foran pointed out , these monies are going to be used for 

senior citizens. Don't worry about that. 

Marjorie Prumatico, New Jersey Council of Senior Citizens. I am sorry 

if I mispronounced that, Marjorie. I might also say that there is a glare from 

up here on my right that hits this paper and it is lik~ looking into a looking 

glass at this point. 

MARJORIE PRUM AT IC O: Senator Dwyer and members of the State Revenue 

and Finance Committee, I have been asked to come here this morning to represent 

the New Jersey Council of Seniors. John Tergis is ill and could not attend and 

our Executive Director is out of state. 

I am Marjorie Prumatico. I am the new Treas~rer for the New Jersey 

Council of Seniors. I am Recording Secretary of the United Auto Workers for the 

State of New Jersey and Vice Chairman for the United Auto Workers of North Jersey 

and Pennsylvania. 

If I may, I will read a letter from our Executive Director. 

"The New Jersey Council of Senior Citizens is opposed to introducing 

legislation to amend the New Jersey Constitution to permit the use .of casino gambling 

profits toward the funding of the Pharmaceutical Assistance Program at this time. 

"In eancting the P.A.A. Program, the State undertook to fund a program 

of pharmaceutical assistance to low and moderate income senior citizens. The 

original act was well within the State's means because it contained a graded 

deductible. In amending the P.A.A., the deductible was eliminated and the plan 

started paying from dollar one. It is not surprising that costs sky rocketed from 

$3 million to $35.7 million. 

It now becomes incumbent on the State to either fund the present program 

or to modify it so that costs will be within the State's means. All of this should 

be done with the knowledge of and the understanding and the consent of senior 

citizen groups. We are presently attempting to have the Institutions, Health and 

Welfare Committee hold public hearings on this matter. 

"We respectfully submit that the interjection of your Committee's hearing 

at this time may very well confuse the ongoing process. 

"We respectfully submit that if casino profits are used to help fund 

P.A.A., senior citizens will be resentful and very much disturbed because they will 

realize that P.A.A. levels will be the same or lower than they were before and casino 

profits will have been used to purchase something which should have been funded 

through another source. Therefore, they will take the attitude that casino profits 

will have been lost to their benefit." 
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I would respectfully request that this be put in the record. 

SENATOR DWYER: Yes, Marjorie, I have the letter from Jack Volosin and 

I was going to include it in the record. I have some other l e t ters to be included 

in the record also. It is usually done after everyone has testified. I was going 

to read the letter at that time, but I thank you for saving me the trouble. Thank 

you very much. 

MS. PRUMATICO: You are welcome. 

SENATOR DWYER: Mr. Anthony Gottberg, New Jersey Federation of Senior 

Citizens. 

ANTHONY GOTT BERG: My name is Anthony Gottberg. I am President of 

the Senior Citizen Clubs of Bergen County and Secretary of the New Jersey Federation 

of Senior Citizens. I want to thank the Committee for this opportunity to address 

you on this very important need of senior citizens -- the continuation of the P.A.A. 

and its amendment that gave seniors on fixed incomes the $1.00 prescriptions. 

The feedback from thousands with inc9mes of between $200 and $300 per 

month was ecstatic over the fact they have $13.00 or $20.00 more per month to 

spend. They now have a few bucks left over after paying rent and other essentials, 

to buy food for a more adequate diet. In addition, they are helping out the 

economy of the State of New Jersey because they will spend these funds on their 

needs, not bank it. 

These are some of the reasons why we are happy to back the addition of 

pharmaceutical assistance to the Casino Gambling law. 

I recognize that this change cannot be made immediately but needs a 

constitutional change. 

What makes the proposed change important to we seniors is that it is 

the first attempt to find an answer to the 15 million dollar short-fall of P.A.A. 

funds that didn't ask the seniors to pay for it out of their meager incomes. 

And, for this I thank you and will remember. 

May I suggest another possible answer and a further reduction of this serious 

short-fall: The use of generic drugs where possible, in place of brand name drugs. 

If hospitals can use generic drugs, so can· we. 

This, added to casion funds, could bring us to within shooting distance 

of success, possibly. At this point, the raising the the co-payment of $2.00 

that the legislators seem to be insisting upon may not be as necessary. 

What we are asking of the Assembly and State Senate is to look kindly 

on our very evident financi~l needs and look a bit closer at the State budget; 

that last million might just well be there. 

When we find that of the first 160,000 seniors signing up for P.A.A., 

50,000 had incomes under $3,000 per year, and 100,000 seniors with incomes under 

$6,000 a year, I think the enormity of their problem becomes evident. This is 

mainly why I am here this morning: To attempt to alleviate some of the contract~ 

ing of our income due to the yearly increase in the cost of living, while our 

income stays fixed. Thank you again for listening. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you very kindly, Mr. Gottberg. 

Is there anybody else in the audience who wishes to testify? 

MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: May I say something? 

SENATOR DWYER: By all means. Come right up, sir. 

VICTOR VOLPE: My name is Victor Volpe. I am 72 years old and I am very 

much interested in things that concern senior citizens. I would like to elaborate 

6 



on what the previous speaker said. In New Jersey every month there are approximately 

732,000 retirement checks that go out. This may involve c l osely 800,000 senior 

citizens. I am not talking about survivers, which are a n additional 500,000; I am 

talking about retirees. Eleven percent of that group in the State of New Jersey 

are on s.s.I. - supplementary security income. If1 they are single and they have 

less than $1,500 in the bank, they get the usual $207.00. If they are a couple 

and they have less than $2,500 in the bank, they get the $309.00. Now, these people 

are protected by medicaid. But, there is a group whose social security check goes 

right down to $154.00 for the simple reason that they have some savings t hat they 

have accumulated over the years. These people are hurting very badly as far as 

medical care is concerned. They don't carry any insurance. They don ' t carry any 

medical insurance of any kind. In fact, 40% of senior citizens do not carry insurance 

and they are very dependent on this program. 

Those senior citizens that I mentioned - the 732,000 - two-thirds of them 

receive no other income other than the retirement pension. They receive no trade 

union pension or an industry pension. Now, these are facts that I have gotten from 

the Social Security Administration and the u. s. Tre~sury - the I.R.s. which sends 

the checks out. 

Now, the question of the drugs -- This gentleman mentioned $15,000,000. We 

were told it was $10,000,000. Where do we find the $10,000,000? Just recently, you, 

our noble gentlemen, appropriated $4 million for beach erosion. You should have 

thought of human erosion. That was $4 million. We repealed $114 million in so-called 

nuisance taxes for business and industry. You see, we ought to take that into 

consideration too. I think that the priority should have been the health of people -

senior citizens. 

Now, I would like to go a step further. This gentleman spoke about 

generic drugs in hospitals. Every hospital has a formulary. Now, I am not an 

authority on this; I am speaking as a layman, so I may not be too correct here and 

there, but bear with me. When you go to a hospital and the hospital has a formulary, 

this is operated with generic drugs which are the least expensive of drugs but the 

most effective. The government department that controls drugs -- I have lost the 

title of that department in my mind -- has okayed this. In fact, they just recently-­

I got a new formulary I think about a month ago, which was published by a certain 

magazine concerned with health. We were told that if they followed this - and this 

was done at the time of the passage of th~ generic drug bill - that there would be 

savings ranging from 15% to as high as 45%, and some figures were even higher than 

that. 

Now, why couldn't the hospitals, through th~ department of State which has 

some influence on that, immediately set up that program so that these savings could 

have been effected? If it had been done at that time we would not be in this jam 

at the present time. 

Another question I asked myself is, if this $10 million deficit that we 

are talking about is going to ride from March to the end of fiscal year June, 1979, 

couldn't we have deficit financing until that time for that $10 million? Then, 

beginning in July for your 1979-1980 budget, you pan then think in terms of a 

modified casino gambling act, if you wish, to get funds from that. Because I 

think this is a great program. It is innovative. There is no other state in the 

country that has this. In fact, the United States Senate attempted this and 

dropped it. We are the only state that has it. It is really a remarkable thing. 
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When you go to senior citizens and you talk to them about it, they are very well 

pleased with this program. This would hurt them tremendously if they lost it. 

I pick up things from newspaper accounts here and the re . Governor Byrne 

said that he wanted no legislation unless the funding was found for that legislation. 

Otherwise, the Administration would not give its approval to the bills dealing with 

these ·problems. If I remember correctly, Mr. Gpldman and Mr. Leone said - and this 

is documented in newspaper articles - that it wasn't necessary to increase the state 

income tax for the simple reason that we may fall behind in collections in the first 

year. But, beginning the second and the third year, the revenue accruing from the 

state income tax would be more than enough to finance any needs we may have as far 

as the state was concerned. I think that under those circumstances we ought to 

think twice before we touch the P.A.A. program. It should remain as it is. If 

we increase it another dollar, the deficit is still there. If we put in deductibles, 

senior citizens who need it badly are going to be left out li~e in the previous 

program. That was the reason for this $1.00 prescription drug program. 

I urge you - I implore you - to be very careful. Stick to the dollar. 

Don't make any changes. You can find the funds. Out of a $,400,000 budget, you 

can find $10 million. Thank you very much. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you, Mr. Volpe. Senator Foran, do you have any 

questions? (no questions) 

Does anyone else wish to testify? Yes, sir? Will you please state your 

name? 

JOHN SEMBER GER: Senator Dwyer, gentlemen, my name is John Semberger. 

I am a Trenton resident. Although I am a member of a lot of senior citizen 

organizations I am only representing myself at this time. And, what is on my 

mind I know is on the minds of most of the senior citizens who voted for this 

program. 

Senior citizens voted for the reason that they would get property tax 

rAlief and now they want to take the money away from us. P.A.A. is really a rip-off. 

All state~ f'mployees, politicians and judges draw th0. blood out of th0 money th.-tt: 

is appropriated for that program. Now they want to take it and give it to more . 

Why should a judge or a state executive, making $40 thousand a year, get a $1.00 

prescription? A senior citizen makes a hell of a lot less than that - or maybe 

doesn't make anything at all - and yet they want them to pay more for their drugs. 

There are quite a few in that gang that I go with that are getting less 

than $3,000 a year and the druggists are after them to pay for that. Now, all I 

would like to know is, why is a low income senior citizen not eligible while a man 

with a $40,000 job, working for the state, is eligible? Thank you very much for 

your time. 

SENATOR DWYER: Thank you, Mr. Semberger. Does anyone else wish to testify? 

(affirmative answer from the audience) Do you want to come down and testify, madam? 

MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: Yes. 

SENATOR DWYER: Mr. Zuzzio, would you help the young lady down, please? 

LUCY J. PINTO: Thank you very much for your courtesy. 

SENATOR DWYER: 

the official record. 

We wanted you to come down so that you could be part of 

MS. PINTO: I did not expect to say a word. We are representatives of the 

Burlington County Office on Aging. We did not prepare a formal statement because 

we did expect to see hundreds of senior citizens. I am a little disappointed. 

SENATOR DWYER: Could we have your name, please? 
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MRS. PINTO: My name is Mrs. Lucy J. Pinto. We have four others sitting 

up there. 

I would like to make a short statement. I have been listening to the 

gentlemen who have been very eloquent in pleading. I will speak also as a senior 

citizen. I am one. I am 64 years of age and I am very proud of it. I expect to 

be working until I am 84. 

We heartedly endorse SCR-86, at it stands - the amendment. In our estima­

tion, or in our feeling as senior citizens, we feel that you, our legislators in 

the State of New Jersey, are really putting an all-out effort to a solution to this 

horrendous financial problem of the P.A.A. program. It has been so highly successful 

it is unbelievable. 

Working for the Office on Aging, we receive the calls. They come into 

our office. We see the income -- $3,000; $4,000; two living on $6,000. This is 

not the exception; this is the average. 

Since the inception of the P.A.A. program in 1975 - I believe I am correct -

the horrible one which was almost impossible to understand and that I worked with 

seniors day and nigh_t on, -I have seen only two come into our off ice with an income 

of over $12,000. Our office has helped, aided, spoke on the phone, counseled, 

and given out information to hundreds and hundreds and hundreds. 

Now, I will end my discussion -- or shall I say what I have to say? -

on the note that we are in favor of this amendment and we wish you well. Please 

find a solution to ·this program. I, myself, am recuperating from a mild heart 

attack and the bill for 19 days was unbelieyable -- $4,000 just for room and board. 

I am very fortunate that I am working and that I can pay for my medication. I still 

owe but I am going to pay. 

Thank you very much for allowing me to speak. I didn't expect to do this, 

but I am happy to do it. 

SENATOR DWYER: You have done an excellent job. Thank you for coming. 

MRS. PINTO: Thank you very much. 

SENATOR DWYER: Does anyone else wish to speak? (no response) 

I would like to read into the record communications that we received. 

We received a letter opposing Concurrent Resolution No. 86 from the Senior Pioneers 

from Paramus, New Jersey. That is one in opposition. We received a letter from 

the Bergen County Senior Citizens Coordinating Council, Inc. They are opposed and 

they suggest a circuit breaker. 

Supporting the Concurrent Resolution are petitions from the Fanwood-Scotch 

Plains area of Union County; the Senior Citizens Council of Watchung; the Tri County 

Senior Citizens Center; the Grant Avenue Community Center in Plainfield; and the 

Over SO's Club of Saint Philip and Saint James Church in Phillipsburg. 

If there is no one else here this morning to testify, I will now conclude 

this public hearing. Thank you for coming. 

(hearing concluded) 
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OFFICE OF PIONEER SENIOR CITIZENS 
FISCAL AFFAIRS 

Hou lO I 15 PH '78 

40 6 Valley Vi ew Ave. 
Para mus, N.J . 07652 
'Nov ember 7 , 1978 

Sena t e Revenue, Finance & Appropriations Committee 
New Jersey Legislature 
Suite 23 ? State House 
'I'ren ton, N. J. 08625 

Re : Sena te Concurrent Res. //86 

Gentlemen, 

As Presi~ent of the Senior Fi~neers of Pa r am~s, I 
wish to go on record as opposing the use of Casino Gambling 
funds for purposes other than those prescribed in the Constitution, 
Article IV Section VII. Casino G$..IDbling was approved by the 
electorate with the distinct understanding that these f'unds 
would be us~for tax and utility relief for Senior Citizens. 
Any change in the use of' these funds, ·whether by Constitutional 
Amendment or otherwise, would constitute a breach of faith 
with Senior Citizens. 

Seniors deserve better than to have legislative 
promises broken at the whim of the legislators. 

Adequate financing must of course be provided ror 
the Pharmaceutical Prescription Program for the Aged, in view 
of the present impending deficit. However, that program should 
be devised to stand on its own, with appropriate and adequate 
support or those participating. 'Ihe Joint Legislative Committee 
on Health & Welfare has conducted hearings at which the New 
Jersey Co-ordinating Council of Senior Citizens, of which the 
Senior Pioneers of Paramus ~s a member, had representation and 
presented its views. 1he Committee has concluded its hearings 
and has now presented its findings. It is hoped t hat the 
legislature will adopt one of the recommendations pre sented. 

Accordingly, any attempt to Amend the Constitution 
should be abendoned. 

lx 

Yours tru~ 
C/ / ..._ -_.-./.·•···•· .. / . ( ) - , - / f 

~
~ / ~ -'h . . ~ 

Fri t.f ·:_J. Dietel 
Pres~den t , Senior Pioneers 

of Paramus 
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BERGEN COUNTY SENIOR CITIZENS 
CO-ORDINATING COUNCIL, INC . 

UNITY 

Board of Directors 

Herbert W. Miller 
(P.P.I Chairman · 
Northvale 

Archur N. Cargo 
President 
Paramus 

Mildred M. Lind 
I st Vice Pres. 
Bergenfield 

William J. Freeman 
2nd Vice Pres. 
Rochelle Park 

Hollis Ware 
Recording Sec·y. 
Midland Park 

Eleanor Norton 
Corres. Sec'y. 
Haworth 

Edna Falter 
Treasurer 
Woodcliff Lake 

Ernest Cossette 
Ass·,. Treas. 
Moonachie 

Robert Burrill 
Trustee 
Saddle Brook 

John Coffin 
Trustee 
Norwood 

Charles Dilba 
Trustee 
Oradell 

John D. Kerwin 
Trustee 
Elmwood Park 

Lee J. Levert 
Trustee 
Tenafly 

Nicholas Paladino 
Trustee 
Lodi 

Bernard Piela 
Trustee 
Lodi 

Aaron Sherman 
Trustee 
Palisade Park 

Erk Smith 
Trustee 
Ramsey 

A UNITED ORGANIZATION OF SENIOR CITIZEN 
CLUBS. CHAPTERS. AND UNITS PURPOSE 

2~2 Haworth Avenue, 
Haworth, N. J. 07641 

Nov. 10,· 1978 

Members of the Senate 
Revenue, Finance and Appropriations Committee, 
Hon. Bernard J. Dwyer, Chairman, 
State House, Trenton, N. J. 08625 

Dear Committee Members;-

Please accept this as the 
official position of this Council_regarding Y.?Ur pu"t?lic 
hearing on S. ~- R. 86. 

At ou:r ·meeting on November 6, 1978, the Council, 
comprise·d of over 100 Clubs and Chapters in Bergen County, 
voted unanimously not to support this bill, unless convinced 
otherwise. We are absolutely opposed to any changes in the 
allocation of funds derived from Casino Gambling. 

The referendum on last year's ballot specifically 
stated that these revenues were to be solely used for 
Senior Citizen property tax and rent relief, and utility 
cost aid. We ·are convinced that the people voted for the 
referendum because of the stated use of the funds; other­
wise .it may have been defeated, and· there would be no ca­
sinos to-day , and you would ._not have to be concerned with 
the ' allocation of them. 

We urge you to immediately allocate the revenues 
received thus far by giving all Senior Citizens whose 
taxes exceed $1,000 and rents that exceed $250. additional 
property tax rebates and rent rel~ef. ·we believe that it is 
equally important, if not more so, to keep ALL se·nior Ci ti­
zens · in the Community of .. their. chpice by a reduction of 
taxes and rents as compared ·" tO' ··any other program. 

Please be advised that unless we can be convinced 
otherwise, we will work to deffeat any referendum that would 
cause a change in the distribution of Casino Gambling reven­
ues from the intent of the r~ferendum approved by the people 
in 1977. 

.,...--R~spec tfully yours, 

~~"Ye,-t_~__, 4 L'Z ~=77 
Eleanor Norton, Corresponding Secreta~J. 

C. C. Brendan T. Byrne, Governor. 
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New Jersey Association of Health Care Facilities 
CAPllOL IIOUSt: 
14:.t WES .I STATE SH~EET 

THU-HON . NE.W JEHSEY 08ti0ti 

Honorable lkn1oni J. Dwyer 
Chairman 
Senate Couunittee on Revenue, 

Finance & Appropriations 
State House 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Dear Senator Dwyer: 

November 15> 1978 

AHEA CODE 609 

989·8200 

I hope you will add these views to _the testimony you received 
today regarding Senate Concurrent Resolution 86. 

Because the primary concern of our member nursing home~ and 
licensed boarding homes for sheltered care is the needs of the elderly, 
we find your interest in better utilizing casino revenues most encouraging. 

As you may know, we worked closely with the Legislature to 
rectify an unfortunate interpretation that financially qualified residents 
of nursing l1omes were not entitled to funds under the Pharmaceutical 
Assistance tu the .Aged (PAA) program. You and your colleagues qu:lckly 
demonstrated the im.:ongruity of c.lenyiug pharmaceutical assistance to 
those most in need of such help--the relatively low income> self-supporting 
patients in nursing homes. 

Now, this humanitarian program is running into cost problems · and 
you are considering the valid suggestion that casino revenues be channeled 
into the PAA program. We concur in such action. 

l want to call your further attention to another needed use for 
the casino proceeds--also involving t.he elderly. Your conunittee and the 
Senatt Institutions, Health & Welfare Committee are both keenly aware of 
the need to upgrade conditions in the State's boarding homes for sheltered 
care. All of us have heard the "horror" stories concerning some of these 
establislunents, particularly those. which serve elderly persons released 
from mental institutions. 

I think there is general recognition in your committee and in the 
Legislature that the state's support--it's share of the SSI payments to 
the needy elderly--has been minimal in this area. Indeed, as the Federal 
Government has increased its share of SSI payments to meet inflationaty 
pressures, the State has reduced its share. 

lFORMERLY NEW JERSt:Y NURSING HOME ASSOCIATION, 
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Therefore, I want to inhH·m yuu of the NJAHCF support of SCR-86 
which would open the door to not only improved financing o f the PAA program 
but . alBo better support of needy r'-!8iuentt> of boarding home8 that provide 
''other pr0grams which benefit eligible senior citi~ens and disabled 
resident tj ••• 

11
• 

c. Honorable Gerald J. Reilly 
Honorable Anthony Scardino, Jr. 

S i.tH.:erely yours, 
,·, 'j 

! 

Jauh:!8 E. Cunningha~-
President 1 
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rHE OVER 50'S CLUB 

OF ST. PHILIP AND ST. JAMES CHURCH 

426 SO MAIN ST. 

PHILLIPSBURG, N.J. 08865 

State of New Jersey 
New Jersey Legislature 
Senate 
Revenue, Finance and Appropriations 
Committee 
Suite 232 State House 
Trenton, N.J: 08625 

Dear Senators, 

ATT: William D. Zuzzio, 
Staff Assistant 

We, the Over 50's Club of St. Philip and St. James 
wish to support the Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 86 which 
proposes to amend the provisions of the Gonstitution which 
prescribe the purpose for which revenu0 from licensing and 
taxation of gambling in Atlantic City Jri:lY be used for senior 
citizens and disab1ed residents. 

We feel that this will be beneficial to our member 8 
We ·would be willing to furnish sitsned petitions to support • 
this amendment. Our club consists of .208 senior citizen members 
as of November 9, 1978. 

We are also willing to actively \-tork within Phillipsbug 
to secure added signatures if needed. 

Again we wish to thank you for hearing our voices in 
the aforementioned amendment. 

~fcere~y yo~s, -
~d--~#~~ 
Veronica Huppmaif/President 
Over 50's Club of 
St. Philip and ~t. James Church 
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